
1 
 

 

CALL MEETING TO ORDER & ESTABLISH A QUORUM (5:00 PM)  

_______ Councilwoman Garvey                                  _______ Councilwoman Wirkkala 

_______ Councilman Brennan           _______ Councilman Harjo              ______ Mayor Sykes 

 

RECOGNIZING PERSONS IN THE AUDIENCE (Please limit comments to a maximum of 3 minutes) 

 

PRESENTATION 

1) Presentation by Rachele Klein with Republic Services  

2) Presentation by members of the Military Affairs Committee. 

 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST DECLARATION 
       Has any Council Member received information pertaining to, or otherwise had, any contact with any 

person regarding any items on this City Council agenda? If so, please set forth the nature of the contact. 

 
CONSENT AGENDA  
      All matters listed within this Consent Agenda section require formal Council action; however, they are 

typically routine or not of great controversy and will be enacted by one motion. Questions for 
clarification may be asked about a particular item before the motion is voted on. However, for lengthy 
discussions or separate motions, a Council Member or citizen may request an item be removed from 
the Consent Agenda section and placed on the Regular Agenda. ALL CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS 
LISTED BELOW ARE ACTION ITEMS. 

 
a) Approval acceptance of minutes:  Impact Fee Advisory Committee- March 13, 2025 

       Planning & Zoning Commission – April 1, 2025    
          Special City Council Meeting- April 3, 2025 
          Regular City Council – April 8, 2025 

       Special City Council Meeting – April 11, 2025                                                 
b) Bills from 4/9/2025 to 4/22/2025 in the amount of $293,974.45 
c) Treasurer's report for the period ending 3/31/2025 
d) Approve the construction and development reimbursement agreement with the Mountain 

Home Urban Renewal Agency for the Railroad Park Plaza project, phase #1, and authorize the 

          

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 
City Council Chambers, 160 South 3rd East 

Mountain Home, Idaho 
Tuesday, April 22, 2025, at 5:00 PM 

 
                        Live Stream Viewing: https://www.youtube.com/c/MountainHomeIdaho 

 

   All materials presented at public meetings become property of the City of Mountain Home. Anyone desiring accommodation          
for disabilities should contact the City Clerk's Office at 208-587-2104 by at least 9:00 AM the morning of the public meeting. 

https://www.youtube.com/c/MountainHomeIdaho


2 
 

Mayor and City Clerk to sign.  
e) Award Bid to Idaho Site Works for the FY2025 Waterline and Roadway Improvement project. 

 
  

OLD BUSINESS  

1) Action Item: Deliberation/Decision regarding staff and legal edits to the approved draft 
cooperative agreement between Elmore County and the City regarding the Animal Control 
Center, and authorize the Mayor, City Clerk, and Chief of Police to sign. (Continued from March 25, 
2025, and April 8, 2025)  

 

NEW BUSINESS  

1) Items removed from the Consent Agenda  

2) Action Item: Deliberation/Decision on adopting a City ordinance regarding TNR. (Requested by 
Councilwoman Wirkkala during meeting on 3/25/2025)  

3) Action Item: Deliberation/Decision on Planning and Zoning Commission recommendation and 
Finding of Facts to amend an existing conditional use permit with conditions requested by 
Idaho Power.  

4) Action Item: Deliberation/Decision on Planning and Zoning Commission recommendation and 
Finding of Facts for a conditional use permit located at West 7th South Street with 
requirements.  

5) Action Item: Deliberation/Decision to arrange a Special City Council meeting to adopt the 
resolution for the LID#1 assessment roll public hearing. Proposed meeting dates are Monday, 
April 28th, or Tuesday, April 29th, 2025, at 5 PM.  

 

FINAL COMMENTS 

 

ADJOURN 

 

 

 



CONSENT 
AGENDA 

















##### 

 

Council Minutes – April 3, 2025                                 

 

AGENDA 

SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

HELD ON APRIL 3RD, 2025 AT 6:00 P.M.  

 AT THE MOUNTAIN HOME CITY HALL  

160 SOUTH 3RD EAST STREET 

  

       CALL MEETING TO ORDER/ESTABLISH A QUORUM 

 

  TOPIC 

 

1)Action Item: Deliberation/Decision regarding Police 

Chief’s resignation letter and effective date. 

2)Action Item: Deliberation/Decision on the golf course 

concessionaire contract and pay schedule. 

3)Action Item: Deliberation/Decision regarding Marty 

Anderson’s resignation letter and effective date.  

 

ADJOURN  

      

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



##### 

 

Council Minutes – April 3, 2025                                 

 

MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING OF THE 

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN HOME, ELMORE COUNTY, IDAHO, 

HELD ON APRIL 3RD, 2025 AT 6:00 P.M.  

AT THE MOUNTAIN HOME CITY HALL  

160 SOUTH 3RD EAST STREET 

 

The Council of the City of Mountain Home, Elmore County, Idaho, met at 

Mountain Home City Hall, 160 South 3rd East, Mountain Home, Idaho, on April 

3rd, 2025. A quorum was established with Councilman Harjo, Councilman 

Brennan, and Councilwoman Wirkkala. Councilwoman Garvey by phone. Mayor Sykes 

was absent. 

 

TOPIC 

 

  1)Action Item: Deliberation/Decision regarding Police Chief’s 

resignation letter and effective date. 

 

Councilwoman Wirkkala said she thought that the Mayor was going to be 

in attendance and that she had questions for him. She also said that they 

received the Police Chief’s letter on April 1, 2025, and that it was dated 

for March 14, 2025, and they have had a Council meeting since then. She said 

that she wanted to know what the plan was moving forward. She then asked 

about getting this item added to the agenda for the next Council meeting. 

 

Councilman Harjo said that this can be tabled until the next meeting 

and make a request to have this topic added to the agenda. 

 

  2)Action Item: Deliberation/Decision on the golf course concessionaire 

contract and pay schedule. 

 

Councilwoman Wirkkala said that the Mayor emailed the Council on March 

31, 2025, about why the concessionaire’s payment per contract was not made 

on February 1, 2025. She said the Mayor then responded that “the 

concessionaire did not need to pay until he was up and operational per 

discussion with Council during the contract process”, this is a quote. She 

said that she did not recall this discussion and asked the Council if any of 

them recall.  

 

Councilman Brennan said that he did not.  

 

Councilman Harjo said that he had some notes from the two meetings in 

November, where this was an agenda item. He also said that he had no notes 

on this part of the discussion, he said all he had was the current contract 

where Section 2 states that the agreement is for a period of 2-years starting 

on November 27, 2024, and Section 3 where rent would commence on February 1, 

2025. 

 

 



##### 

 

Council Minutes – April 3, 2025                                 

 

Councilwoman Wirkkala asked if Councilwoman Garvey had any recollection 

of a conversation about delaying payment.  

 

Councilwoman Garvey said that she did not recall a conversation about 

delaying payment. 

 

Councilwoman Wirkkala said that the money that was to be paid on 

February 1st and March 1st was planned to be added to the budget. She said 

that she made a pretty strong stance on this topic last year, with the 

previous concessionaire stating that it is not up to the taxpayers to 

subsidize a private business. She said that she felt bad for the current 

concessionaire if he was told by the Mayor that he didn’t have to pay until 

April 1st, however there is a law binding contract that states that payments 

would due starting February 1, 2025. 

 

Councilwoman Wirkkala made a motion to have the current golf course 

concessionaire pay per their contract, which would include February and March 

rent plus utilities. There being no second, the motion died. 

 

Councilwoman Garvey said that she thinks that the Council needs more 

clarification on why he was told not to pay when he came in to pay. She said 

that the problem she has and with the things she has heard based on 

discussions with the Mayor and City staff is that the City did not turn over 

a turnkey operation to him. She said there were problems that were part of 

the City’s responsibility to fix, that he ultimately had to fix that caused 

the delays. She said that she thinks there needs to be further discussion 

before deciding.  

 

Councilwoman Wirkkala said that there were nearly two months of no rent 

as well as December and January. We knew the conditions of the building when 

the contract was made. She asked if it was known that there was a problem, 

why did we not foresee to make the contract start date later than February 

1, 2025. She said that the Mayor’s email did state that the concessionaire 

did come in on January 30, 2025, to make payment and was told he didn’t have 

to per the discussion with the Council.  

 

Councilwoman Wirkkala went on to say that there were four items listed 

in the email that caused the delays; State Health Department required popcorn 

ceilings in kitchen area to be removed, the contractor selected by the City 

was delayed by a few days, the concessionaire was unable to obtain an alcohol 

license from ABC until the remodel was at 80% completion, and the bathroom 

fixtures and partitions were delayed on shipping.  

 

Councilman Harjo said that at the time they began the ceiling project, 

there were other State agencies called in for testing, to ensure whether or 

not there was asbestos in the popcorn ceilings, which there was no asbestos. 

He said that he’d like to table this until Tuesday’s City Council meeting as 

well.  



##### 

 

Council Minutes – April 3, 2025                                 

 

 

Councilwoman Wirkkala said that she supports this being tabled. 

 

Councilman Harjo made a motion to table this and enter it as an agenda 

item on Tuesday’s Council meeting. Councilwoman Wirkkala seconded the motion. 

 

Councilman Brennan said that he was going to side with the Mayor on 

that one, as the City had a lot of blame in the late opening. He said they 

had engaged in a remodel that was not anticipated to the level it became at 

the time the contract was signed. He said that he thought they had taken 

action that was in the best interest of the City long term. He said in his 

opinion they hadn’t subsidized a business because the business was never 

opened. He said that he didn’t want to go down the road of asking him to pay 

when they hadn’t even opened the doors to let him in, due to the remodel 

ever growing. 

 

Councilwoman Wirkkala said that when you say the City pays it is again 

the taxpayer paying, that was $3,200 that was planned to go into the budget 

that didn’t go in, along with the cost of the electricity used. She said 

that is just her point of view on it. 

 

Councilwoman Garvey said that the electricity would have been on and 

paid regardless of if there was a person in there or not. She said to her 

sentiment that the concessionaire was not handed over a place that was 

turnkey operational, and even the Health Department said it’s not 

operational. She said he wasn’t making any money at that time. She said the 

last thing we need to look at is the amount of money, energy, and resources, 

that place looks beautiful and hasn’t looked that beautiful in a long time. 

She said that we need to give him credit where credit is due. She said that 

she supports bringing this back on Tuesday.  

 

Councilwoman Wirkkala said that when she owned her own business and was 

doing renovations, she still had to make her rent payments even though they 

weren’t open for business yet because she had signed a legally binding 

contract.  

 

Councilman Brennan said that he knows a lot of contracts often have a 

delay of occupancy; however, this one did not. He said the contract does 

talk about repairs and maintenance of the clubhouse, which says the City 

shall perform any required repairs and maintenance, except those caused by 

the concessionaire. He said that he agrees that a contractual matter is a 

contractual matter, and the Council is responsible for that, but he said he 

doesn’t believe the City did anything wrong aside from not asking the 

Council’s permission. He said that the City did what was in the best interest. 

 

Councilwoman Wirkkala said that’s exactly why she asked for this topic 

to be on the agenda, to find out why it wasn’t brought to the Council for 

decision. 



##### 

 

Council Minutes – April 3, 2025                                 

 

 

The following vote was recorded: 

  

  Councilman Brennan  AYE 

  Councilwoman Garvey  AYE 

  Councilwoman Wirkkala  AYE 

  Councilman Harjo   AYE 

 

 The vote being unanimous, the motion was carried and so ordered. 

 

  3)Action Item: Deliberation/Decision regarding Marty Anderson’s 

resignation letter and effective date. 

 

Councilwoman Wirkkala said that citizens have stated they have received 

Marty Anderson’s letter of resignation as military liaison, but to her 

knowledge, the Council has not received an official letter. She said what 

she does have is a copy that was texted to her by a constituent who FOIA 

requested it. She said that she wanted to ask the Mayor why she is getting 

this type of communication from the citizens and not the Chief Administrator 

of Mountain Home. She said that she wanted to ask why the Council is not 

getting that communication that she feels like they should have. She said 

that she also wanted to confirm the effective date. She asked Legal if this 

is considered official, being that it’s just an email and that there is no 

signature on it.  

 

Paul Fitzer, City Attorney, said that he, as legal counsel, is 

accepting, as of March 14, 2025, Marty Anderson’s request for resignation 

from his contractual position and that this is sufficient.  

 

Councilwoman Wirkkala said that per the Military Liaison’s contract, 

it says that “this contract may be terminated by either party with 30 days 

written notice to the other with or without fault”. She said that if this 

email starts on March 14,2025, when it was given to the Mayor and the Clerk, 

but states that he intends to terminate this contract effective April 30, 

2025, that is more than 30 days. She said she wants to propose that they 

accept this email as an effective date of March 14 with an end date of April 

14.  

 

Councilman Harjo asked if she is making an official motion at this 

time. 

 

Councilwoman Wirkkala said that she is proposing it, and she wanted to 

leave it open for discussion if anyone has discussion. She said the letter 

is interesting and that her name is mentioned a few times, and that this 

might be her only time to defend herself. She went on to read portions of 

Marty Anderson’s resignation letter. 

 

Councilwoman Wirkkala made a motion to accept the termination letter 



##### 

 

Council Minutes – April 3, 2025                                 

 

with the effective date of March 14, 2025, and with an end date of April 14, 

2025. Councilman Harjo seconded the motion. 

 

Councilman Brennan asked Legal that, since this was not an employee of 

the City but a contractual agent, whether they had the ability to cut this 

short as a Council, or if that was an Executive decision. 

 

Paul Fitzer said that he thought the City Council had authority, as 

they were the entity that had authorized the Mayor to enter into the contract, 

and they were also the ones responsible for the funds and the approval of 

the budget. 

 

Councilman Harjo called for a recess to confer with Legal at 6:31 pm. 

 

Councilman Harjo called for the City Council meeting to resume at 6:37 

pm. 

 

Councilman Brennan said that with the advice of Legal, he would like 

to make a motion to enter into Executive Session before holding a vote, so 

that he can relay the conversation he had with Legal. Councilwoman Wirkkala 

seconded the motion. 

 

 There was a discussion with Legal about whether another motion can be 

made while there’s already an open motion on the floor, and per Robert’s 

Rules of Order, it is permitted. 

 

 Councilwoman Wirkkala amended her motion to accept the Military 

Liaison’s resignation effective March 14, 2025, with an end date of April 

14, 2025, and pay to end on April 14, 2025. Councilman Harjo seconded the 

motion. 

 

 The following vote was recorded: 

 

  Councilwoman Wirkkala  AYE 

  Councilwoman Garvey  NAY 

  Councilman Brennan  AYE 

  Councilman Harjo   AYE 

 

 The majority of the vote being in favor, the motion was carried and so 

ordered. 

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

 1)Pursuant to Idaho Code Section 74-206(1)(b)– to consider the 

evaluation, dismissal, or disciplining of, or to hear complaints or charges 

brought against, a public officer, employee, staff member, or individual 

agent. 

 



##### 

 

Council Minutes – April 3, 2025                                 

 

 Councilman Brennan made a motion to go into executive session pursuant 

to Idaho Code Section 74-206(1)(b). Councilwoman Wirkkala seconded the 

motion. 

 

 The following vote was recorded: 

  

  Councilwoman Garvey  AYE 

  Councilman Brennan  AYE 

  Councilwoman Wirkkala  AYE 

  Councilman Harjo   AYE 

 

 The vote being unanimous, the motion was carried and so ordered.  

 

 The Council went into Executive Session at 6:39 p.m. 

 

 The Council came out of Executive Session at 6:55 p.m. 

 

ADJOURN 

 

There being no further business to come before the Council, the meeting 

was adjourned at 6:56 p.m. by orders from Councilman Harjo.   

 

 

              

       Scott Harjo, Council President 

 

 

 

ATTEST:        

   Tiffany Belt, City Clerk 



##### 

Council Minutes – April 8, 2025 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE 

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN HOME, ELMORE COUNTY, IDAHO, 

HELD ON April 8th, 2025, AT 5:00 P.M. 

AT MOUNTAIN HOME CITY HALL CHAMBERS 

MOUNTAIN HOME, IDAHO 

 

#####  CALL MEETING TO ORDER/ESTABLISH A QUORUM  

 

#####  PUBLIC HEARING 

1. Public hearing establishing a fee for Missing and/or 

Replacement Keys for City Golf Carts 

 

#####  RECOGNIZING PERSONS IN THE AUDIENCE  

 

##### CONFLICT OF INTEREST DECLARATION 

  Has any Council Member received information pertaining 

to, or otherwise had any contact with any person 

regarding any items on this City Council agenda? If so, 

please set forth the nature of the contact. 

   

#####       CONSENT AGENDA – All matters listed within this Consent 

Agenda section require formal Council action, but are 

typically routine or not of great controversy and will 

be enacted by one motion. Questions for the purpose of 

clarification may be asked about a particular item 

before the motion is voted on. However, for lengthy 

discussion or separate motion a Council member or 

citizen may request an item be removed from the Consent 

Agenda section and placed on the Regular Agenda. ALL 

CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS LISTED BELOW ARE ACTION ITEMS.   

 
A. Approval acceptance of minutes: 

a. Planning & Zoning Commission– March 4, 2025 
b. Regular City Council Meeting– March 25, 2025 

B. Bills from 3/26/2025 to 4/11/2025 in the amount of 
$583,336.04 

C. Payroll for the period ending 2/22/2025 to 3/21/2025 
in the amount of $767,063.08 

D. Approve Amendment 1 with GUHO for City of Mountain 
Home Railroad Park Plaza and authorize the Mayor 
to sign. 

 
##### OLD BUSINESS 

1)Action Item: Deliberation/Decision regarding approved 
resolution #08-2025 clarification of 2025 Golf fees, City 
staff seeking further clarification regarding the approved 
resolution. 
2)Action Item: Deliberation/Decision regarding draft 
agreement with Race to Empower LLC to operate an oval and 
straight track at Optimist Park and authorize the Mayor and 
City Clerk to sign.  
3)Action Item:  Deliberation/Decision regarding the 
cooperative agreement between Elmore County and the City 
regarding the Animal Control Shelter and authorize the Mayor, 
City Clerk, and Chief of Police to sign. 
4)Action Item:  Deliberation/Decision regarding Police 
Chief’s resignation letter and effective date. 
5)Action Item: Deliberation/Decision on the golf course 
concessionaire contract and pay schedule. 

   
##### NEW BUSINESS 

1)Items removed from Consent Agenda 
2)Action Item: Deliberation/Decision to approve Resolution 
#09-2025R establishing a fee for missing and/or replacement 
keys for City Golf carts.  
3)Action Item:  Deliberation/Decision regarding MHSD 
Stephensen Elementary Letter of Support 2026. 

 
##### FINAL COMMENTS 
 
 
##### ADJOURN 
 
 

 

 



##### 

Council Minutes – April 8, 2025 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE 

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN HOME, ELMORE COUNTY, IDAHO, 

HELD ON April 8TH, 2025, AT 5:00 P.M. 

 

 The Council of the City of Mountain Home, Elmore County, Idaho, met at 

the Mountain Home City Hall Chambers, 160 South 3rd East, Mountain Home, Idaho 

on April 8th, 2025. A quorum was established with, Councilman Harjo, 

Councilwoman Wirkkala, Councilman Brennan, Councilwoman Garvey and Mayor 

Sykes being present. 

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

1)Pursuant to Idaho Code Section 74-206(1)(b) – to consider the 

evaluation, dismissal, or disciplining of, or to hear complaints or charges 

brought against, a public officer, employee, staff member, or individual 

agent. 

 

Councilwoman Garvy made the motion to enter into Executive Session 

pursuant to Idaho Code 74-206(1)(b) and 74-206(1)(f) at the beginning of the 

meeting. Councilman Harjo seconded the motion. 

  

The following vote was recorded: 

 

  Councilwoman Garvey  AYE 

  Councilman Brennan  AYE 

  Councilwoman Wirkkala  AYE 

  Councilman Harjo   AYE 

 

The vote being unanimous, the motion was carried and so ordered. 

 

The Council went into Executive Session at 5:01 P.M. 

 

The Council came out of Executive Session at 5:34 P.M. 

 

2)Pursuant to Idaho Code Section 74-206(1)(f) –to communicate with legal 

counsel for the public agency to discuss the legal ramifications of and legal 

options for pending litigation or controversies not yet being litigated but 

imminently likely to be litigated. 

 

Councilwoman Garvy made the motion to enter into Executive Session 

pursuant to Idaho Code 74-206(1)(b) and 74-206(1)(f) at the beginning of the 

meeting. Councilman Harjo seconded the motion. 

  

The following vote was recorded: 

 

  Councilwoman Garvey  AYE 

  Councilman Brennan  AYE 

  Councilwoman Wirkkala  AYE 

  Councilman Harjo   AYE 

 

The vote being unanimous, the motion was carried and so ordered.  

 

The Council went into Executive Session at 5:01 P.M. 

 

The Council came out of Executive Session at 5:34 P.M. 

 

RECOGNIZING PERSONS IN THE AUDIENCE  

 

• Jake Dudley came forward to respectfully request the Council 

consider unfreezing the police lieutenant position in light of the upcoming 

Police Chief’s resignation. He continued to speak on all of the positive 

changes that have taken place under the Chief during his time here. He said 

that unfreezing the lieutenant position would allow vital support, and it 

would allow for a smooth transition and to train and prepare the new 

lieutenant under the guidance of the current Chief and ensure that the Chief’s 

input is part of the selection process. 

 



##### 

Council Minutes – April 8, 2025 

PUBLIC HEARING 

 

 1)Public Hearing establishing a fee for Missing and/or Replacement Keys 

for City Golf Carts. 

 

 The public hearing opened at 5:34 P.M. 

 

 The public hearing closed at 5:35 P.M. 

 

Has any Council Member received information pertaining to, or otherwise 

had any contact with any person regarding any items on this City Council 

agenda? If so, please set forth the nature of the contact.  

 

• Councilman Harjo said that he had emails from Matt Menine and 

Melba Drenning regarding Old Business 2 and received a phone call from Decker 

Sanders, but they never synced up regarding Old Business 5. 

 

• Councilwoman Wirkkala said that she also received an email Matt 

Menine on Old Business 2 and a call from Decker Sanders on Old Business 5, 

but was unable able to match up schedules. 

 

CONSENT AGENDA 

 

All matters listed within this Consent Agenda section require formal 

Council action, but are typically routine or not of great controversy and 

will be enacted by one motion. Questions for the purpose of clarification may 

be asked about a particular item before the motion is voted on. However, for 

lengthy discussion or separate motion a Councilmember or citizen may request 

an item be removed from the Consent Agenda section and placed on the Regular 

Agenda. ALL CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS LISTED BELOW ARE ACTION ITEMS. 

 
A.  Approval of Minutes 

 Planning & Zoning Commission– March 4, 2025 
 Regular City Council– March 25, 2025 

B.  Bills from 3/26/2025 to 4/11/2025 in the amount of $583,336.04 
C. Payroll for the period ending 2/22/2025 to 3/21/2025 in the 

amount of $767,063.08 
D. Approve Amendment 1 with GUHO for City of Mountain Home 

Railroad Park Plaza and authorize the Mayor to sign. 
 

Councilman Harjo asked to update through interlineation the City 
Council Meeting minutes for March 25, 2025, regarding Nisha Merryman’s 
testimony, she said it was illegal, not legal, to feed cats outside of 
property. 

 
Councilwoman Garvey asked what the amendment was for Item D. 
 
Tiffany Belt, City Clerk said that she might have placed it on the 

desk right before the meeting as it did not make it into the packet. She said 
that GUHO declared the land group as the architect for the railroad project, 
but they are not. She said it was just a name change for clarification. 

 
Councilman Brennan made a motion to approve the agenda and make the 

correction through interlineation on the minutes. Councilman Harjo seconded 
the motion.  

 
The following vote was recorded: 
 
 Councilman Harjo   AYE 
 Councilwoman Wirkkala  AYE 
 Councilman Brennan  AYE 
 Councilwoman Garvey  AYE 
 
The vote being unanimous, the motion was carried and so ordered. 

 

OLD BUSINESS  

 

1)Action Item: Deliberation/Decision regarding approved resolution #08-

2025 clarification of 2025 Golf fees, City staff is seeking further 

clarification regarding the approved resolution. 

 

Councilman Brennan asked Tiffany Belt when season passes went on sale 

this year. 

 



##### 

Council Minutes – April 8, 2025 

Tiffany Belt said sometime after the 1st of January. 

  

Councilman Brennan said he was confused because he saw a post on social 

media saying that said season passes are now for sale, and that came after 

the March 25, 2025 meeting. 

 

 Tiffany Belt said that they have allowed people to purchase their 2025 

passes at the end of 2024 as some people purchase them as Christmas gifts. 

She said that the City did put a post out once the resolution was cleaned up 

from the last meeting to clarify the changes that have been made. 

 

 Councilwoman Garvey asked what clarification that City staff is looking 

for as that’s how the Item is written. 

 

 Tiffany Belt said that there are still some contradictions between the 

old resolution and the new one. She asked if the Council’s intentions are for 

the greens fees to be Monday through Thursday across the board and then the 

weekend is Friday through Sunday; or is the greens fees Monday through Friday.  

 

 Councilwoman Garvey said that she thought the greens fees were Monday 

through Thursday and that weekend rates were Friday through Sunday.  

 

 Tiffany Belt said that is how Staff interpreted it, however the way the 

resolution that was voted on at the March 25, 2025 meeting said that greens 

fees would be recognized as Monday through Friday, and that Saturday, Sunday 

and holidays were weekend.  

 

 Councilwoman Garvey said yes, and season passes are Monday through 

Friday. 

 

 Tiffany Belt asked if the greens fee is throughout all of them, military, 

senior, etc.  

 

 Councilman Harjo said that defining the application of Monday through 

Friday for the season pass and for the weekday pass and that the greens fees 

for non-pass holders would be Monday through Thursday. 

 

 Councilwoman Garvey and Tiffany Belt discussed possibly getting a 

machine to print cards out at the golf course as well. 

 

 Councilman Harjo asked if this clarified well enough and asked Legal if 

there needed to be a motion made. 

 

 Paul Fitzer, City Attorney said no motion needs to be made.  

 

2) Action Item: Deliberation/Decision regarding draft agreement with 

Race to Empower LLC to operate an oval and straight track at Optimist Park 

and authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to sign. 

 

Mayor Sykes informed the Council that the current agreement is for an 

oval track only and wanted to make sure the agreement accounts for what Race 

to Empower will be adding and he said there was also a name change. 

 

Tiffany Belt said that this originally came forward back in November, 

that there was a motion on the table to do a name change and grant a 10-year 

extension. She said they had intentions of adding a straight track back then, 

however after looking into the lease agreement amending it to adding a 

straight track needed to come back to edit and make a clean draft agreement. 

She said that was what this was for today.  

 

Councilman Harjo said that several of the Race to Empower folks were 

here and asked Eric Barsness and Ronnie Bergh could come forward.  

 

Eric Barsness asked if the $45 park fee per event would need to be paid 

up front for the year based on the schedule of events. 

 

Tiffany Belt said that they could be paid for at the time of the event, 



##### 

Council Minutes – April 8, 2025 

like a day prior, they don’t have to be paid for all up front. She went on 

to explain the lease formula for lease agreements, but for the sake of ease, 

they decided to go with a flat rate for the days that the group plans a race. 

 

 Councilman Brennan said that also applied to any scheduled practices 

for the races would also count as part of the fee per day of events.  

 

 Eric Barsness said that they had switched names from Mountain Home 

Speedway LLC to Race to Empower Inc, a 501-C3 non-profit organization. He 

said that when they had the land use discussion, they had it written in as 

the whole facility. He said that because they are non-profit, they are working 

on grants and asked if in the future they are able to fund a fence around the 

whole facility, would they be required to come back and rewrite the lease. 

 

 Tiffany Belt said not if it’s in 10-years. She said that it would be 

nice to know on the planned improvements, however.  

 

 Councilman Brennan said that they would still have to follow all City 

ordinances, like getting building permits and such.  

 

 Councilwoman Garvey made a motion to approve the deliberation/decision 

regarding draft agreement with Race to Empower LLC, adding Race to Empower 

Inc., 501(c)(3) to the language. Councilman Harjo seconded the motion. 

 

 Councilman Brennan said that he fully supports this, but there is one 

that will be a deal breaker for him, Paragraph 3 on Page 6 which said that 

the City could continue to grant approval for any kind of equipment. He said 

they need to operate their own heavy equipment, not City owned. He said his 

request for the Council was not to allow, under any circumstances, the use 

of City equipment for the operation of the facility. 

 

 Councilwoman Garvey said that the Council tabled this discussion several 

months back based on this, and she said that she agreed with Councilman 

Brennan and requested to amend her motion until the Council can further 

discuss this topic, and that it could always be added back on as an addendum 

after the fact. 

 

 Councilwoman Garvey made a motion to approve the deliberation/decision 

regarding draft agreement with Race to Empower LLC, adding Race to Empower 

Inc., 501(c)(3) to the language, striking “without prior written approval of 

the Mayor or his delegate”. Councilman Brennan seconded the motion. 

 

 Councilman Harjo said that the use of City equipment had been a major 

topic across all City matters. He stated that he recognized previous users 

had introduced some level of concern. He noted that this group were all 

capable heavy equipment operators. He mentioned that the City did not have a 

policy regarding the public's use of City equipment. He said that he would 

refrain from subtracting from the contract until there had been a more 

thorough review of all aspects of what the “use of City equipment” entailed, 

and a policy had been created around that. 

 

 Councilwoman Garvey said that she understood what Councilman Harjo was 

saying, but there was nothing saying that it can’t be added back on later. 

She said that they have not been able to discuss allowing individual people 

that are not vetted through the City to use heavy equipment.  

 

 Eric Barsness said that it would be equipment like the tractor with the 

auger to put in the fence poles. He said that they bring in their own equipment 

often, but there are a lot of times when the City equipment was already there. 

 

 Councilwoman Garvey asked Legal where the City stands if Ronnie or Eric 

were using equipment and they or someone else got hurt, were we okay with our 

insurance because we were allowing them to use the equipment.  

 

 Paul Fitzer said that he would like to hear the answer from ICRMP.  

 

 Councilwoman Garvey said that from a City stand point, they were not on 



##### 

Council Minutes – April 8, 2025 

the City’s insurance policy, and that her motion stands.  

 

 Tiffany Belt asked Paul Fitzer if this would be any different than the 

City’s COPs that were listed on the City insurance, if the City were to list 

them as well.  

 

 There was a discussion between Paul Fitzer, Tiffany Belt, and Eric 

Barsness about how previously a list of approved operators had been provided.  

 

 Councilman Harjo asked Councilwoman Garvey if that meant she was willing 

to include this language back into the contract that was previously motioned 

out.  

 

 Councilwoman Garvey amended her motion to approve the 

deliberation/decision regarding draft agreement with Race to Empower Inc, 

501-C3 to operate the oval and straight track at Optimist Park, amending the 

in paragraph 3 on page 6 to read that Race to Empower Inc, will within 15 day 

to get a list to the City of the individuals that are to be authorized and 

added to City insurance in order to operate the City equipment, still with 

the approval of the Mayor. Councilman Harjo seconded the motion. 

 

 Councilman Brennan said that he still didn’t like it and asked where we 

draw the line.  

 

 Councilwoman Wirkkala and Eric Barsness discussed in-kind work that he 

had done for the City. 

 

 The following vote was recorded: 

 

  Councilwoman Wirkkala  AYE 

  Councilwoman Garvey  AYE 

  Councilman Harjo   AYE 

  Councilman Brennan  NAY 

 

 The majority of the vote being in favor, the motion was carried and so 

ordered. 

  

3) Action Item: Deliberation/Decision regarding the cooperative 

agreement between Elmore County and the City regarding the Animal Control 

Center and authorize the Mayor, City Clerk, and Chief of Police to sign. 

 

Councilwoman Garvey said that she read over the copy that Chief Thompson 

sent over and the only change that she would have requested was to 5-A, as 

it still did not allow for any designated spaces for County dogs.  

 

Councilman Harjo said that he had a brief discussion with Danniele 

Strain, Animal Control Center Supervisor about her edits. He said in that 

brief discussion she identified that while it was not expressly stated, that 

through their operation, they can manage very well and have not encountered 

capacity issues. He said the only request that he had was citing some sort 

of billing and invoice cycle. 

 

Councilman Harjo made a motion to approve the cooperative agreement 

between Elmore County and the City regarding the Animal Control Center adding 

through interlineation stipulation for quarterly billing cycle. Councilwoman 

Wirkkala seconded the motion. 

 

Councilman Brennan asked if a clarification via reduction on Section 5-

B, by eliminating during normal operating hours.  

 

Jon Thompson, Chief of Police, said that he’d like the language to 

remain included to clarify what normal operating hours were. 

 

Councilman Brennan stated for his own understanding that Chief Thompson 

wanted the normal operating hours listed, but 24-hours a day the County can 

still transport dogs. 

 



##### 

Council Minutes – April 8, 2025 

There was continued discussion among the Council regarding different 

sections of the agreement for clarification and understanding. 

 

Councilman Harjo said that he would like to see the language remain as 

it currently is in the agreement. 

 

Councilman Brennan asked the Council on Sub B, if it could be made into 

two sentences; “Normal operating hours are Monday through Friday 8:00 A.M. 

to 5:00 P.M.” and “ECSO will provide pick up and transportation services of 

dogs to Animal Control Center.” 

 

Councilman Brennan and Councilman Harjo continued the previous 

discussion on Paragraph A for further clarification.  

 

Councilman Harjo amended his motion and made through interlineation on 

Section 5-B, which is broken into two sentences as requested, and added a 

passage for the business and billing for quarterly. Councilwoman Wirkkala 

seconded the motion. 

 

The following vote was recorded: 

 

 Councilman Brennan  AYE 

 Councilwoman Garvey  AYE 

 Councilman Harjo   AYE 

 Councilwoman Wirkkala  AYE 

 

The vote being unanimous, the motion was carried and so ordered. 

 

4) Action Item: Deliberation/Decision regarding Police Chief’s 

resignation letter and effective date. 

 

Councilwoman Wirkkala said that the Council received the Chief’s 

resignation letter on April 1, 2025, and that it was dated for March 14, 

2025, and there had been a Council meeting since then. She asked the Mayor 

what the plan was moving forward. 

 

Mayor Sykes said that he and the Chief were working on a plan currently. 

He said that they have reached out to ICOPA and Post and that they were trying 

to figure it out. 

 

5) Action Item: Deliberation/Decision on the golf course concessionaire 

contract and pay schedule. 

 

 Councilwoman Wirkkala said the concessionaire came in to pay on 

January 30, 2025, to make his first payment, and he was told that he would 

not need to make a payment until April 1, 2025. She asked the Mayor why 

that was not run by the Council first.  

 

 Mayor Sykes said that he would defer his answer in Executive session. 

He said that the payment had been made for April. 

 

 Councilwoman Wirkkala said that the contract stated that payment would 

be made on February 1, 2025, and if it was up to the Council to hold the 

purse strings and to approve the contract, she thinks that was something 

that should have been brought up to the Council for discussion. 

 

 Councilwoman Wirkkala made a motion to have the golf course 

concessionaire pay per contract for February and March rent and utilities. 

There being no second, the motion died. 

 

 Councilman Brennan said that no disrespect, but he disagreed with 

that. He said that the City decided, while the building was vacant, to 

continue with some construction projects. He said he doubted much 

electricity was used during the renovation, and since he wasn’t in business 

during this time, the City was not subsidizing him. He said in the end he 

thinks the City made the right decision.  

 



##### 

Council Minutes – April 8, 2025 

 Councilwoman Garvey said that she was pretty clear about her stance on 

this on Thursday. She said that $3,200 is nothing compared to what he put 

in personally.  

 

 Councilman Brennan asked Tiffany Belt about the concessionaire paying 

over $4,000 for doors for the new facility. 

 

 Tiffany Belt confirmed that he had paid for all the doors and the 

bathroom upgrades, as the partitions were falling off the walls. 

 

 Councilwoman Wirkkala made a motion for the concessionaire to pay at 

least the utilities for February and March. There being no second, the 

motion died. 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

 

1)Items removed from the Consent Agenda 

 

There were no Items removed from the Consent Agenda for consideration. 

   

 2)Action Item: Deliberation/Decision to approve Resolution #09-2025R 

establishing a fee for missing and/or replacement keys for City Golf carts. 

 

 Councilman Brennan made a motion to approve Resolution #09-2025R 

establishing a fee for missing and/or replacement keys for City Golf carts. 

Councilman Harjo seconded the motion. 

 

 The following vote was recorded: 

 

  Councilwoman Garvey  AYE 

  Councilman Brennan  AYE 

  Councilwoman Wirkkala  AYE 

  Councilman Harjo   AYE 

 

 The vote being unanimous, the motion was carried and so ordered. 

 

 3)Action Item: Deliberation/Decision regarding MHSD Stephensen 

Elementary Letter of Support 2026. 

 

 Councilman Harjo made a motion to approve the Deliberation/Decision 

regarding MHSD Stephensen Elementary Letter of Support 2026. Councilwoman 

Garvey seconded the motion. 

 

 The following vote was recorded: 

 

  Councilman Harjo   AYE 

  Councilwoman Wirkkala  AYE 

  Councilman Brennan  AYE 

  Councilwoman Garvey  AYE 

 

 The vote being unanimous, the motion was carried and so ordered. 

 

FINAL COMMENTS 

 

 Councilman Harjo said that he recognized Councilman Brennan’s concern 

about equipment use and said that there was merit behind developing some 

policies. He asked if they could work on this together to present when ready. 

 

 Mayor Sykes asked about the lieutenant position and if the Council would 

be willing to open the position back up sooner rather than later.  

 

 Councilwoman Wirkkala said she wanted to open that position. She said 

that the hold was put on this position for the Mayor and the Chief to figure 

out what the alternate plan for the dispatch agreement is going forward. She 

commended Councilwoman Garvey and Councilman Harjo on their efforts with the 

Animal Control MOU, as that was one of the things that the County said was 

holding up going back onto the dispatch agreement. 



##### 

Council Minutes – April 8, 2025 

 

 Councilwoman Garvey and Councilman Harjo both support this decision as 

well.  

  

ADJOURN 

 

 There being no further business to come before the Council, the meeting 

was adjourned at 6:42 P.M. by orders from Mayor Sykes. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

       ___________________ __________   _  _ 

       Rich Sykes, Mayor  

  

 

ATTEST:  ____________________________ 

         Tiffany Belt, City Clerk 

 



##### 

 

Council Minutes – April 11, 2025                                 

 

AGENDA 

SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

HELD ON APRIL 11th, 2025 AT 9:00 A.M.  

 AT THE MOUNTAIN HOME CITY HALL  

160 SOUTH 3RD EAST STREET 

  

       CALL MEETING TO ORDER/ESTABLISH A QUORUM 

 

  TOPIC 

 

1)Action Item: Deliberation/Decision to unfreeze the 

unfilled police department lieutenant position.  

 

ADJOURN  

      

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



##### 

 

Council Minutes – April 11, 2025                                 

 

MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING OF THE 

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN HOME, ELMORE COUNTY, IDAHO, 

HELD ON APRIL 11th, 2025 AT 9:00 A.M.  

AT THE MOUNTAIN HOME CITY HALL  

160 SOUTH 3RD EAST STREET 

 

The Council of the City of Mountain Home, Elmore County, Idaho, met at 

Mountain Home City Hall, 160 South 3rd East, Mountain Home, Idaho, on April 

11th, 2025. A quorum was established with Councilman Harjo, Councilwoman 

Wirkkala, and Mayor Sykes. Councilwoman Garvey and Councilman Brennan by 

phone.  

 

TOPIC 

 

  1)Action Item: Deliberation/Decision to unfreeze the unfilled police 

department lieutenant position. 

 

 Councilman Harjo asked the Mayor what the approximate timeline to hire 

would be for this position, and also the empty Chief position when that time 

comes. 

 

 Mayor Sykes said that the Chief’s last day was April 30, 2025, and his 

position was actively open. He said they had received some applications and 

that he needed to go over them with the Chief. He also wanted the Chief to 

be a part of the lieutenant selection process as well. 

 

 Councilwoman Garvey made a motion to approve the unfreezing of the 

lieutenant position. 

 

 Councilman Harjo said that the only question that had remained for him 

on unfreezing that day, in fairness to every party, was the feedback from 

the current Police Chief as well as the future Police Chief. He said that 

had been the missing part for him, binding the next Police Chief to a brand-

new hire. He asked the Mayor if he would have wanted the incoming Chief to 

have some bearing on that decision as well. 

 

 Mayor Sykes said that he believed that the Police Department was 

professional enough, and Chief Thompson, in his opinion, would do a great 

job in whoever they chose to hire. 

 

 Councilman Harjo said that the primary reason behind the freezing of 

the position at the time had been based on the financial position the City 

might have been in if they had to stand up their own dispatch and determine 

where money could be allocated from. He said that, with the dynamic having 

changed, those concerns were still present, but good headway had been made 

with the County toward reaching a dispatch agreement through good faith 

measures. 

 



##### 

 

Council Minutes – April 11, 2025                                 

 

 Councilman Harjo asked the Mayor if he had any discussion with the 

County on restoring, or if the Council and the Mayor could all go have that 

discussion in the near future. 

 

 Mayor Sykes said that, per his recollection, he was told not to reach 

out and that the Council would work on that.  

 

 Councilman Harjo said that what he had asked for at the time, was that 

none of them go unilaterally. He said that the Mayor and Council should go 

as a unified front to discuss this topic with the County.  

 

 Mayor Sykes agreed with Councilman Harjo. 

 

 Councilman Brennan said that the work of the Council had shown some 

progress on getting the dispatch agreement back in some aspect, although the 

County had not made any indications that will come true.  

 

 Councilwoman Garvey said that we had contingency funds set aside to aid 

in these types of issues, but for this position to be frozen was hurting 

everyone. She said that the Police Department was not operating at full 

capacity, and the City and Council need to allow them to do so for public 

safety.  

 

 Councilwoman Wirkkala told Councilwoman Garvey that she agreed. She 

said that the Council had been taking the initiative to meet with the County 

and rebuild that relationship. She said that she thought the incoming Chief 

should have a say on who was his next in command.  

 

 Mayor Sykes said that once they have an active pool to look through 

with Chief Thompson, because of that he couldn’t give a specific date. 

 

 Councilwoman Garvey said that she understood the sentiment behind 

allowing the new Police Chief to pick their own team. She pointed out that 

if the hire came from out of state, they might not know anyone, making it 

difficult to fairly and accurately make a good selection when new to the 

operation. She said the Police Department should be the one to decide, since 

they worked with these individuals every day. She also raised the concern 

that if it took say six months to find a new Chief, Lt. Larson would be left 

on his own during that time. 

 

 Councilwoman Wirkkala asked how many applications had come in 

currently.  

 

 Tiffany Belt, City Clerk, said that she wasn’t sure of the exact number, 

no more than ten, but she believed that only two applicants had credentials.  

 

 Councilman Harjo said that the incoming Police Chief should have a say, 

but there is a balance to be had in this moment and the changing dynamic. He 



##### 

 

Council Minutes – April 11, 2025                                 

 

said that Councilwoman Garvey was correct, there were contingency funds set 

aside. He said that he also did not want to see Lt. Larson worked to the 

bone over the next few months while this process moves on. He said that he 

would second Councilwoman Garvey’s motion. He also asked the Mayor to 

schedule a meeting with the County Commission to discuss the dispatch 

agreement. 

 

 The following vote was recorded: 

 

  Councilman Brennan  AYE 

  Councilwoman Wirkkala  AYE 

  Councilman Harjo   AYE 

  Councilwoman Garvey  AYE 

 

 The vote being unanimous, the motion was carried and so ordered. 

 

ADJOURN 

 

There being no further business to come before the Council, the meeting 

was adjourned at 9:15 A.M. by orders from Mayor Sykes.   

 

 

              

       Rich Sykes, Mayor 

 

 

 

ATTEST:        

   Tiffany Belt, City Clerk 







































 

Reimbursement Agreement - 1 

CONSTRUCTION AND DEVELOPMENT  

REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT 

(Railroad Park Plaza Project Phase #1) 

 

 

THIS CONSTRUCTION AND DEVELOPMENT REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT 

(RAILROAD PARK PLAZA PROJECT PHASE #1) (the “Reimbursement Agreement”) is made 

and entered into this _____ day of _____________, 2025, by and between the city of Mountain 

Home, Idaho, a municipal corporation of the state of Idaho (the “City”), and the Urban Renewal 

Agency of the city of Mountain, Idaho, also known as the Mountain Home Urban Renewal 

Agency, an independent public body corporate and politic (the “Agency”), individually referred 

to as “Party” and collectively as the “Parties.” 

 

RECITALS 

 

WHEREAS, the Agency is authorized to undertake and carry out urban renewal projects 

to eliminate, remedy, or prevent deteriorated or deteriorating areas through redevelopment, 

rehabilitation, or conservation, or any combination thereof, within its area of operation and is 

authorized to carry out such projects jointly with the City; 

  

WHEREAS, the City Council of the city of Mountain Home, Idaho (the “City”), on July 

24, 2006, after notice duly published, conducted a public hearing on the Mountain Home Urban 

Renewal Plan (the “Plan”); 

 

WHEREAS, following said public hearing the City adopted its Ordinance No. 1448 on 

July 24, 2006, approving the Plan and making certain findings; 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City, on June 20, 2011, after notice duly published, 

conducted a public hearing on the Amended and Restated Urban Renewal Plan for the Mountain 

Home Urban Renewal Project (the “Amended and Restated Plan”); 

 

WHEREAS, following said public hearing the City adopted its Ordinance No. 1566 on 

June 20, 2011, approving the Amended and Restated Plan and making certain findings; 

 

WHEREAS, the Amended and Restated Plan established the Revenue Allocation Area (the 

“Project Area”), which established an area for redevelopment and anticipated improvement 

projects; 

 

WHEREAS, the Amended and Restated Plan identified improvements to the Project Area 

such as creating public spaces, gateway entries, art, community facilities owned or occupied by 

the City or Elmore County, open space, sidewalks, streets, rights-of-way, pedestrian and bicycle 

access, crosswalks, parking facilities, and other improvements as important objectives of the 2010 

Plan; 

 

WHEREAS, the Amended and Restated Plan and the Project Area terminate December 31, 

2030, recognizing the Agency shall receive its allocation of revenues in 2031, pursuant to Idaho 



 

Reimbursement Agreement - 2 

Code § 50-2903(7) (the “Termination Date”). Many of the proposed improvements identified in 

the Amended and Restated Plan have not been completed and continue to suffer from certain 

deteriorating conditions; 

 

WHEREAS, in May 2023, the Agency engaged Rudeen Architects to develop a team of 

consultants including Rudeen Architects, The Land Group, Sage Engineering, and DC Engineering 

(“Consultants”) to develop preliminary designs and construction drawings, as depicted on Exhibit 

A attached, for the development of the Railroad Park Plaza, which consists of community activity 

gathering space, pedestrian amenities, parking, and other improvements (“Project”);  

 

WHEREAS,  the Consultants have developed concept plans for the Project that have been 

accepted and approved by the Agency;  

 

 WHEREAS, the City and the Agency wish to engage in a jointly managed development 

and rehabilitation project for the development of the Project;  

 

WHEREAS, these improvements will greatly enhance the Project Area and provide 

numerous public amenities in downtown Mountain Home;  

 

WHEREAS, the City solicited bids for the Project based on the design plans developed by 

Consultant and received a preliminary construction estimate cost for the Project of $4,500,000.00 

as shown on Exhibit B attached,  

 

WHEREAS, the Agency Board finds it in the best interests of the Agency to continue to 

enhance the development within the Project Area and in the best interests of the public to provide 

financial support for the Project, as depicted on Exhibit A attached hereto;  

 

WHEREAS, the City and the Agency, along with the Consultants, are jointly managing the 

planning, design, construction, and development of the Project;  

 

WHEREAS, the City has requested that the Agency reimburse the City 100% of the Project 

costs estimated for Phase #1, $2,8000,000.00;  

 

WHEREAS, the City and the Agency hereby find and determine that this Reimbursement 

Agreement enables them to cooperate to their mutual advantage in a manner that will best accord 

with the needs and development of the City and the Agency; 

 

WHEREAS, the ability for the City and Agency to cooperate and jointly benefit each other 

is expressly allowed pursuant to Idaho Code § 50-2015; 

 

WHEREAS, in consideration of the payment by the Agency to fund an amount not to 

exceed $2,800,000.00 phase #1 of the rehabilitation costs, as more specifically defined in this 

Reimbursement Agreement, the City hereby agrees to serve and perform as project manager for 

the final planning, design, engineering, construction and development of the Project; said final 

design to be subject to the review and approval of the Agency. 

 



 

Reimbursement Agreement - 3 

AGREEMENT 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the provisions contained herein and the recitals 

set forth above, which are a material part of this Reimbursement Agreement, the Parties agree as 

follows:  

 

1. Definitions. As used in this Reimbursement Agreement, the following words, 

unless the context dictates otherwise, shall have the following meanings: 

 

Act shall mean collectively the Idaho Urban Renewal Law of 1965, title 50, chapter 20, 

Idaho Code, as amended and supplemented and the Local Economic Development Act of 

1988, title 50, chapter 29, Idaho Code as amended and supplemented. 

 

Board shall mean the Board of Commissioners of the Agency as the same shall be duly 

and regularly constituted from time to time. 

 

Contract shall mean the contract through which the general contractor is awarded the 

construction of the Project. 

 

Contractor shall mean the selected general contractor awarded the construction of the 

Project. 

 

2. Recitals and Purpose. 

 

a. The Parties agree that the foregoing recitals are not mere recitations but are 

covenants of the Parties, binding upon them as may be appropriate and a 

portion of the consideration for the agreements contained herein. 

 

b. The purpose of this Reimbursement Agreement is to provide for the 

definition of rights, obligations, and responsibilities of the Agency and City 

regarding the planning, design services, engineering services, project 

management services, and cost estimating services for this Reimbursement 

Agreement.  

 

3. City Services and Responsibilities. City agrees to furnish its skill and judgment 

necessary to carry out the project administration for the Project. 

 

3.1 Planning, Design, Engineering, Construction and Development. City and 

Agency shall coordinate hiring of necessary engineering, construction, or landscape 

architectural services, cost estimating, and construction management and administration 

for the Project consistent with the public procurement and bidding requirements. These 

services include the completion of bid documents for advertising and securing construction 

bids for the Project. City shall provide the Agency with periodic reports and updates on the 

completion of the final design services, engineering services, cost estimating, and 

construction specifications for Agency review and comment, including approval of the 

final construction drawings and design of the Project.  



 

Reimbursement Agreement - 4 

  

3.3 Bid Solicitation and Award. City has solicited bids (“Bid(s)”) for the Project 

and selected a bid as depicted on Exhibit B, attached hereto and incorporated by reference. 

The City has ensured the submitted Bid is in compliance with chapter 28, title 67, Idaho 

Code.  

  

3.4 Design and Rehabilitation. The obligations under this Reimbursement 

Agreement shall end thirty (30) days after final payment to the Contractor under the 

Contract has been paid. The City shall: 

 

a. Provide administration of the Project in compliance with generally accepted 

standards recognizing that the Project is a partially Agency funded project 

with the City providing project management. City shall comply with all 

applicable statutory provisions including, but not limited to, chapter 28, title 

67, Idaho Code; 

 

b. Provide necessary project management and oversight to assure Contractor’s 

timely progress and process all invoices and payment requests and verify 

Contractor’s entitlement to all progress payments or other payments 

requested by Contractor; 

 

c. Recommend necessary or desirable changes to the Agency and, if accepted, 

prepare and sign necessary change orders; 

 

d. Inspect the work and advise the Agency whenever work fails to conform 

with the Contract documents; 

 

e. Receive and hold all certificates of insurance required by the Contract; 

 

f. Provide monthly progress reports to Agency either in writing or by 

presentation to Agency at Agency’s Board meetings; 

 

g. Assist in the interpretation of the drawings and specifications among the 

City, Agency, and the Contractor; 

 

h. Maintain all necessary records, documents, drawings, and other related 

documents normally maintained for a public works project; and 

 

i. Determine when the Project or a designated portion thereof is substantially 

complete, issue Certificates of Substantial Completion (if necessary), and 

determine when the work is ready for final inspection and final payment to 

the Contractor. 

 

3.5 City Contribution. The Project as described in this Reimbursement 

Agreement is within the Project Area and is partially funded through the Agency. The City 

has also budgeted funds for this work. City may agree to forego reimbursement for internal 



 

Reimbursement Agreement - 5 

costs of City personnel in performing any of the services described in this Agreement. City 

shall contribute all funds toward any work or improvements to areas outside the Project 

Area.  

 

4. Agency and City Obligations. The purpose of this Reimbursement Agreement is 

to provide for the definition of rights, obligations, and responsibilities of the Agency and City 

regarding the Project. The Agency shall have no obligation to fund any Project costs which have 

been funded by other public entity funding and there shall be no duplication of funding for various 

reimbursement requests. 

 
5. Effective Date. This Reimbursement Agreement shall be effective upon execution 

of the Reimbursement Agreement by Agency’s Chairman of the Board of Commissioners and the 

Mayor of the City the effective date being the date of last signature.  

 

6. Method of Reimbursement. As consideration for the development of the Project 

and City’s efforts in the development of same, the Agency shall pay up to $2,800,00.00 of the 

costs of the Project, including planning, design, engineering, and rehabilitation. All project costs 

related to areas outside of the Project Area will be borne by the City.  

 

In order to provide sufficient documentation to ensure compliance, the City shall provide 

the Agency with the following information in monthly invoices and in a final invoice upon 

completion of the Project: 

 

a. requests for payment for billing invoices received for work related to the Project 

with sufficient documentation to ensure accuracy;  

 

b. certification by the City that the costs incurred for construction services are 

consistent with the scope of the Project; and 

 

c. monthly reports on the Project’s status as described above. 

 

Upon receipt and approval of the monthly invoice, Agency shall remit payment to City for 

all approved amounts within forty-five (45) days of Agency’s receipt of an invoice or payment 

request. If Agency disputes any amount, Agency shall pay the undisputed amount within forty-

five (45) days and reasonably cooperate with City to resolve the disputed amount. City shall 

include this payment process within the Contract with the selected contractor. 

 

7. Records Project Costs. Cost documentation pertaining to the Project shall be kept 

on the basis of generally accepted accounting principles and shall be available to the Agency or 

the Agency’s authorized representative at mutually convenient times. 

 

8. Insurance.  

 

a. The City (either itself or the selected Contractor) shall purchase and 

maintain, for the benefit of the City and the Agency, insurance for 

protection from claims under the worker’s compensation law of the state of 



 

Reimbursement Agreement - 6 

Idaho arising from work performed on the Project; claims for damages 

because of bodily injury, including personal injury, sickness, disease, or 

death of any of the City’s employees or of any person while working on the 

Project; claims for damages because of injury to or destruction or loss of 

use of tangible property as a result of work on the Project; and claims arising 

out of the performance of this Reimbursement Agreement and caused by 

negligent acts for which the City is legally liable. The terms and limits of 

liability shall be determined solely by the City, and nothing herein shall be 

construed as any waiver of any claim or defense by the City or the Agency 

premised upon any claim of sovereign immunity or arising from the Idaho 

Tort Claims Act. The amount of insurance shall be in the amounts set forth 

in the Idaho Tort Claims Act. 

 

b. The City shall also purchase and maintain for the benefit of the City and 

Agency property damage insurance for any property damage to the Project 

or other property owned by the City. 

 

9. Indemnity. Only to the extent permitted by Idaho law, the City shall defend, 

indemnify, and hold Agency and their respective officers, agents, and employees harmless from 

and against all liabilities, obligations, damages, penalties, claims, costs, charges, and expenses, 

including reasonable planning, design and engineering fees, and attorney fees (collectively referred 

to in this section as “Claim”), which may be imposed upon or incurred by or asserted against 

Agency or its respective officers, agents, and employees relating to the planning, design, and 

engineering of the Project or otherwise arising out of this Reimbursement Agreement. In the event 

an action or proceeding is brought against Agency or their respective officers, agents, and 

employees by reason of any such Claim, City, upon written notice from Agency, shall, at City's 

expense, resist or defend such action or proceeding.  

 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, City shall have no obligation to indemnify and hold 

Agency and its respective officers, agents, and employees harmless from and against any matter 

to the extent it arises from the negligence or willful act of Agency or its respective officers, agents, 

or employees or from conduct resulting in an award of punitive damages against Agency. 

 

10. Amendment. This entire Reimbursement Agreement may be amended at any time, 

and from time to time by the mutual written consent of the City and the Agency. 

 

11. Severability. In the event any provision of this Reimbursement Agreement shall 

be declared by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable, the validity, 

legality, and enforceability of the remaining provisions shall not in any way be affected or impaired 

thereby. 

 

12. Notice. Any and all notices required to be given by either of the Parties hereto, 

unless otherwise stated in this Reimbursement Agreement, shall be in writing and be deemed 

communicated when mailed in the United States mail, certified, return receipt requested, addressed 

as follows: 



 

Reimbursement Agreement - 7 

 

To Agency: 

Mountain Home Urban Renewal Agency 

Randy Valley, Chair 

[address]  

To City: 

City of Mountain Home  

c/o [enter]  

[address]  

 

 

13. Non-Waiver. Failure of either Party to exercise any of the rights under this 

Reimbursement Agreement, or breach thereof, shall not be deemed to be a waiver of such right or 

a waiver of any subsequent breach. 

 

14. Choice of Law. Any dispute under this Reimbursement Agreement, or related to 

this Reimbursement Agreement, shall be decided in accordance with the laws of the state of Idaho. 

 

15. Attorney Fees. Should any litigation be commenced between the Parties hereto 

concerning this Reimbursement Agreement, the prevailing Party shall be entitled, in addition to 

any other relief as may be granted, to costs and reasonable attorneys’ fees as determined by a court 

or arbitrator of competent jurisdiction. This provision shall be deemed to be a separate contract 

between the Parties and shall survive any default, termination, or forfeiture of this Reimbursement 

Agreement. 

 

16. Authority to Execute. Agency and City have duly authorized and have full power 

and authority to execute this Reimbursement Agreement. 

 

17. Assignment. It is expressly agreed and understood by the Parties hereto that the 

City shall not have the right to assign, transfer, hypothecate, or sell any of its rights under this 

Reimbursement Agreement except upon the prior express written consent of Agency.  

 

18. Disputes. In the event that a dispute arises between Agency and City regarding 

application or interpretation of any provision of this Reimbursement Agreement, the aggrieved 

Party shall promptly notify the other Party to this Reimbursement Agreement of the dispute within 

ten (10) days after such dispute arises. If the Parties shall have failed to resolve the dispute within 

thirty (30) days after delivery of such notice, each Party shall have the right to pursue any rights 

or remedies it may have at law or in equity. 

 

19. Anti-Boycott Against Israel Certification. 

 

City and Agency hereby certify pursuant to Section 67-2346, Idaho Code, they are not 

currently engaged in, and will not for the duration of this Reimbursement Agreement, knowingly 

engage in, a boycott of goods or services from Israel or territories under its control. 

 

20. Contract With A Company Owned or Operated By the Government of China 

Prohibited. 

   



 

Reimbursement Agreement - 8 

City and Agency hereby certify pursuant to § 67-2359, Idaho Code, that they are not 

currently owned or operated by the government of China and will not for the duration of this 

Reimbursement Agreement be owned or operated by the government of China. 

 

21. Prohibition on Contracts with Companies Boycotting Certain Sectors.  

 

City and Agency hereby certify pursuant to § 67-2347A that they shall not, during the 

course of this Reimbursement Agreement, engage in any boycott of any individual or company 

who engages in or supports: 

 

1)  the exploration, production, utilization, transportation, sale, or manufacture of 

fossil fuel-based energy, timber, minerals, hydroelectric power, nuclear energy, or 

agriculture; 

2)  or engages or supports the manufacture, distribution, sale, or use of firearms, as 

defined in Idaho Code § 18-3302(2)(d).  

 

22. Entire Agreement. This Reimbursement Agreement along with any and all 

exhibits attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference contains and integrates all of the 

terms and conditions mentioned herein or incidental hereto and supersedes all negotiations or 

previous agreements between the Parties with respect to all or any part of the Project. 

 

23. Non-General Obligation. As provided by Idaho Code § 50-2910, the obligations 

of Agency hereunder shall not constitute a general obligation or debt of the Agency, the State of 

Idaho, or any of its political subdivisions or give rise to a charge against their general credit or 

taxing powers to be payable out of any funds or properties other than the monies deposited in the 

special fund or funds provided for herein and pledged hereby to the payment of the Project.  

 

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto, through their respective governing boards, 

have executed this Reimbursement Agreement on the date first cited above. 

 

       CITY OF MOUNTAIN HOME  

 

 

       By _________________________________ 

             Rich Sykes, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

______________________________ 

City Clerk 

 

 

 



 

Reimbursement Agreement - 9 

MOUNTAIN HOME URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY 

 

 

By ____________________________ 

      Randy Valley, Chair 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

______________________________ 

Secretary 



 

 

Exhibit A 

 

(Project Design Drawings) 

 

  



 

 

Exhibit B 

 

(Bid Estimates) 

 

 

 

 
4875-8360-1371, v. 2 



 

        City of Mountain Home       City Hall & Office of Mayor Sykes 

P.O. Box 10, 160 S. 3rd East, Mountain Home, ID 83647 • (208) 587-2104 • www.mountain-home.us 

 

   

REQUEST FOR BIDS  
April 9, 2025 @ 2:00 p.m. 

Bids for City of Mountain Home FY2025 Waterline and Roadway Improvements   
 

Public Works Director- Chris Curtis, Water and Superintendent- Dave Sonnentag, opened the following bid at 2:00 p.m. 
for bids on the City of Mountain Home FY2025 Waterline and Roadway Improvements.    

 

  
There were no other submitted. 
 

Tiffany Belt  
 
Tiffany Belt  
City Clerk     

COMPANY Addendum  Signatures Subcontractors  Public 
Works 

License  

Bid 
Bonds 

Amount 

Mountain Companies LLC #1 
 

X X X X $3,104,030.00 

Larson Guth Construction  #1 X X X X $2,491,145.54 

Idaho Site Works #1 X X X X $2,356,774.00 

Burks Excavation Corporation of Idaho #1 
 

X X X X $2,954,725.00 

       

       

       

       



OLD 
BUSINESS 



 

1 
 

COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
ELMORE COUNTY AND THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN HOME 

REGARDING THE PROVISION OF ANIMAL CONTROL CENTER SERVICES 

 

This Cooperative Agreement Between Elmore County and the City of Mountain 
Home Regarding the Provision of Animal Control Center Services (the "Agreement") is, 
made and entered into the ______ day of ___________, 2025 (the "Effective Date"), by and 
between Elmore County (the "County"), a political subdivision of the State of Idaho, and the 
City of Mountain Home, Idaho (the "City"), an Idaho municipal corporation.  The County 
and the City shall be individually a “Party” and collectively the “Parties.” 

Recitals: 

A. The City and County have found it to be in the best interest of both parties to 
cooperate regarding animal control services for the housing of County animals 
("Animal Control Center Services"); and 
 

B. The city is best suited to provide such Animal Control Center Services; and 
 

C. The County desires to contract with the City for the performance of Animal Control 
Center Services, at Mountain Home Animal Control Center (“MHACC”); and 
 

D. The City is agreeable to providing such Animal Control Center Services on the terms 
and conditions hereinafter set forth. 
 

E. The Mountain Home City Police Department (“MHPD”) operated the Animal Control 
Center; and 
 

F. Elmore County Sheriff ’s Office (“ECSO”) is agreeing to contract with the City of 
Mountain Home. 

Agreements: 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants herein 
contained, it is mutually agreed as follows: 

1. The purpose of this Agreement is to outline responsibilities and actions required by the 
City, as the owner and operator of the Mountain Home Animal Control Center (the 
“MHACC”), and the County, pertaining to stray and impounded dogs delivered to the 
MHACC by ECSO. “Stray and “impounded” are further defined in Section 15 of this MOU. 
 

2. This Agreement provides for the housing of stray and impounded dogs from within the 
geographical boundaries of Elmore County delivered to the MHACC by County law 
enforcement officers, depending upon the availability of MHACC space. This Agreement 
is not a guarantee of MHACC space availability.  



 

2 
 

a) This agreement does not provide any services for cats, domestic or feral, in the 
County. This agreement does not cover any services offered to any entity by the 
City of Glenns Ferry. 
 

b) The Animal Control Center will not accept drop-off, strays or abandoned animals 
directly from county residents.  The ACC will only accept these animals from ECSO 
deputies with an assigned case and call number.  

 
c)   This agreement does not cover services for any type of wildlife. 

 
3. The City shall provide the following MHACC Services for healthy and uninjured dogs 

delivered to the MHACC by County law enforcement officers during the period of 
performance prescribed in this Agreement. 
 

a) Impounded and stray healthy and uninjured domestic dogs at the MHACC for the 
minimum holding period pursuant to Idaho State Law and City Ordinances, 
depending on overall space availability. 
 

b) Adoption services for stray domestic dogs.  The MHACC will retain any and all fees 
from administering the adoption services. 

 
c) Daily care, including weekends and holidays, for all dogs brought to the MHACC.  

A detailed log documenting all care and history for each animal shall be kept by 
MHACC. 

4.   The City shall not provide the following services for the County:  

a) Medical treatment and veterinary services for dogs are not covered by this 
agreement. 
 

b) The City will not accept sick or injured dogs from the County.  This includes dogs with 
a tick, flea, or similar pest infestation. 
 

c) The City does not provide euthanasia services for the County. 
 

d)  Quarantine services for dogs are not covered by this agreement. ”Quarantine” is 
further defined in Section 15 of this MOU.  

5.   The County agrees to: 

a) The county agrees that the housing of County dogs is on a space available basis only. 
The MHACC supervisor or designee shall determine the availability of space.  
 

b) During normal operating hours (Monday-Friday 8AM to 5PM). ECSO will provide 
pickup and transportation services of dogs to the MHACC.  

 
 



 

3 
 

c) After regular business hours (Monday-Friday 5PM to 8AM) and all major holidays, 
instruct deputies that they are to call the supervisor on duty at MHPD to coordinate 
and allow access to the MHACC. The MHPD supervisor has the authority to deny 
access to the facility based on existing circumstances, such as pending calls for 
service, and/or the medical or physical conditions of the animal.  
 

d) Maintain a documented log/history of all dogs delivered to the MHACC. 
 

e) Instruct deputies to identify and report dangerous dogs before arriving at the MHACC 
in accordance with City ordinance 6-6-1. 
 

f) Arrange for the use of an alternate housing facility in the event that facility space is 
not available at the MHACC. 
 

g) Take all sick and injured dogs to a veterinary care facility for treatment prior to 
contacting the City.  The City shall not be responsible for any medical expenses in 
treating such animals.   
 

h) It shall be the responsibility of the County to make every reasonable effort to reunite 
the dog with their owner or the person designated by that owner. In the event a dog 
is brought to the MHACC by the County due to an impound, the City will house the 
dog if space is available for no longer than seven (7) calendar days.  After seven (7) 
calendar days, it is the responsibility of the County to provide further housing for the 
dog.  For the first seven (7) calendar days, the payment schedule shall be $25.00 a 
day.  On the eighth calendar day and all following days, the payment shall increase to 
$50.00 a day for each impounded dog, until the dog is removed from the MHACC. This 
section does not cover stray animals. 
 

i) The County agrees to allow the City of Mountain Home to take legal ownership of any 
stray dogs brought to the MHACC after 5 (five) business days. For the first 5 (five) 
days, the payment schedule shall be $25.00 a day. The fees will discontinue after the 
6th (sixth) business day.  
 

j) Pay the fee to the city as set forth in this Agreement. 
 

k) The Fee shall be billed quarterly for all stray dogs brought to MHACC by ECSO during 
the prior quarter.  Payment shall be made within 60 days of receipt of the invoice and 
each subsequent quarter for the duration of the agreement. The City of Mountain 
Home shall issue an invoice to the Elmore County Sheriff 's Office for the fees 
associated with housing stray dogs at MHACC.  

6.  The City agrees to: 

a) Take responsibility and temporary possession of all dogs delivered to the MHACC by 
County law enforcement officers pursuant to this Agreement, according to Idaho 
state law and City ordinances. 



 

4 
 

 
b) Provide the MHACC Services as described in this Agreement. 

 
c) Maintain documentation and detailed records of each animal turned over to the 

MHACC by the County law enforcement personnel. 
 

d) The city agrees to take all ownership and responsibility of any stray dogs brought 
from the county after 5 (five) business days in compliance with city ordinance 6-6-1. 

7.  The parties agree that the City shall not be required to provide any Animal Control Field 
Enforcement or prosecution within the County. 

8.  In consideration of the City providing MHACC services for the county, the County shall 
pay to the City fees for each dog that is brought to the MHACC by ECSO deputies as defined 
in the sections of this agreement.  

9. The parties agree to meet on an as needed basis for purposes of maintaining 
communication in regard to the MHACC Services provided by the City. 

10. This Agreement shall be automatically renewed each year from October 1 until 
September 30 of the following year, unless either party notifies the other in writing within 
sixty (60) days prior to the termination date of its election not to renew the Agreement. In 
the event either party hereto desires to terminate this Agreement at any other time, such 
party may do so by giving sixty (60) days' written notice to the other party. 
 

11. This Agreement shall become effective on the Effective Date and shall end on (and 
including) September 30, 2029, unless this Agreement is terminated sooner under Section 
10. 

12.  This Agreement shall not be assigned, modified, amended, or altered except in writing, 
with no less than thirty (30) days’ notice, signed by both of the parties hereto. 

13.  This Agreement contains the entire Agreement between the parties with respect to the 
subject matter hereof and supersedes all prior oral or written agreements and 
understandings. 

14.  In the event that any action is filed in relation to this Agreement, the unsuccessful party 
in the action shall pay the successful party, in addition to all the sums that either party may 
be called on to pay, a reasonable sum for the successful party's costs, expenses and 
attorney's fees. 

15. Definitions:  For the purpose of this agreement, the definitions are as follows: 

a) Stray dog:  A dog that is roaming free or lost, essentially a dog without a home or no 
known owner. 

 



 

5 
 

b) Impound:  The taking into custody of a dog by any law enforcement officer, animal 
control officer, or any authorized representative thereof, and confined in a humane 
manner. The dog is known to have an owner or responsible party. 

c) Quarantine:  To isolate a dog in a controlled environment away from contact with 
animals or humans in an effort to assess the behavior and overall health of the animal.  
Normally is utilized for rabies observation and/or control. 

 

The Agreement was executed as of the Effective Date. 

 

City: 

The City of Mountain Home 

 

By: _______________________________________ 

Rich Sykes, Mayor 

 

                (SEAL) 

ATTESTS: 

 

__________________________________________ 

Tiffany Belt, City Clerk 

 

 

Mountain Home Police Department 

 

_________________________________________ 

Jonathan Thompson, Police Chief 

 

 

 

 

 



 

6 
 

 

 

Elmore County: 

 

By: _______________________________________ 

Franklin L. Corbus, Commissioner 

 

By: _______________________________________ 

Crystal Rodgers, Commissioner 

 

By: _______________________________________ 

Albert Hofer, Commissioner 

 

                (SEAL) 

ATTESTS: 

 

__________________________________________ 

Shelley Essl, Elmore County Clerk 

 

Elmore County Sheriff 's Office:  

 

__________________________________________ 

Mike Hollinshead, Elmore County Sheriff 



NEW 
BUSINESS 

 





























































MEMORANDUMS 
FROM STAFF 





 

      City of Mountain Home                    Department of Public Works 

P.O. Box 10 • 1150 South Main, Mountain Home, ID 83647 • (208) 587-2108 • www.mountain-home.us 

 

 

April 10, 2025 

 

RE: Chlorine price increase 

 

 

Mayor & Council, 

 

I am writing to inform you that the price of chlorine has increased significantly in recent weeks. 

This will lead to a substantial over-expenditure for the Wastewater Department line item 26-435-

74-00. For FY 25, the Wastewater department budgeted $100,000 for chlorine; with the price 

increase, we anticipate our expenses will rise to $200,000.  

The Wastewater department uses chlorine as the final stage of treatment before the water is 

applied to the land. Without this chlorine, we would be unable to discharge.  

The Wastewater department has sufficient funding in the capital reserve to cover this increase. 

Please let me know if you have any questions. 

 

Chris Curtis 

Director of Public Works 

  


